EDSYS, INC.

EDUCATION DELIVERY SYSTEMS

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

WEDNESDAY, June 16, 2021

Consent Agenda

1. Approve May 19, 2021 Meeting Minutes
2. Enrollment

3. Metrics

4. May 2021 Financials

. Reports
1. CEQ’s/Principal’s Report
a. Student Recruitment
b. Further Review of 2021-2022 School Model
i. Additional Meetings
e Monday, June 28t
e Wednesday, July 7th

2. Board Committee Updates
a. Finance
b. Racial Equity & Social Justice
c. Student Recruitment & Retention
d. Governance
i. Parent Representative Candidate (vote required)

M. New Business
1. Approval of 2021-2022 Draft Budget (vote required)

V. Executive Session
1. Adjudications

V. Next Board Meeting- July 7, 2021
1. Student Orientation™ June 12t and 23
2. Graduation™ June 19t



EDsSYs, INC. Minutes from May 19, 2021

Board of Trustees Meeting
Education Delivery Systems Page 1 of 4

Minutes of a Reqular Meeting of
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
EDsYs, INC

Time and Place

A meeting of the Board of Trustees of EDSYS, Inc., a Pennsylvania nonprofit corporation, was held remotely via Zoom on
Wednesday, May 19, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. due to operating a modified educational model resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic.

The following Board of Trustees members were present and a quorum was established:

Gerry Dudley

Larry Hailsham
David Lehman
Valerie Njie

Tracey Armant Reed
Bill Stayduhar
Cindy Tananis

Also present were:

Kathy Clark, Esqg.
Tammy Ferguson

David Lehman chaired the meeting.

Oath of Office
Kathy Clark introduced her colleague from Strassburger McKenna Gutnick and Gefsky Tammy Ferguson to administer the
Oath of Office. All Board members present affirmed the duties of the office as a member of City High School Board.

Consent Agenda
The Consent Agenda for the March 17, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting included the following items:
= Approve March 17, 2021 and April 21, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes.
= Metrics
= Enrollment
* Financials

Larry Hailsham moved to approve the minutes. Cindy Tananis seconded the motion. The motion to approve both sets of
minutes was unanimously approved.

CEO/Principal Report

Dara Ware Allen presented the CEO’s/Principal’s Report highlighting the following topics:
She provided an update on the following topics: fundraising, enrollment and outreach. She then shared information
about internal and external activities.

Dara Ware Allen then presented on the proposed four day school week. She provided the following background,;

Four Day School Week
= We had what we saw as an innovative idea prior to the pandemic.




EDsSYs, INC. Minutes from May 19, 2021

Board of Trustees Meeting

Education Delivery Systems Page 2 of 4

= We were actually scheduled to present this idea at our March Board meeting last year but held off once our
March meeting became an emergency meeting to respond to the emerging pandemic.

= With all of the challenges of the pandemic, there were some silver linings, particularly regarding openness
to new ideas and innovations. In this environment, we were able to test the 4-day school week in action. As
3 or the 4 trimester models during the pandemic have included a 4 day school week.

Current Hours vs Four Day Week Hours

e PA requires 990 hours and we report hours to the state

e Pre-COVID, City High students, 91"-11'", attend 226-242 hours over the annual requirement set by
PDE and 80 hours over for seniors.

e Originally, when we initially explored this model, we concluded that time needed to be added to
the daily schedule in order to meet the annual 990 hour minimum. Currently, we’re working
through various scenarios to see if we can maintain our regular school day schedule within 4 days
beyond the flexibility we’ve been able to have during the pandemic.

- Factors to consider:

o The senior model (e.g. ability to offer the necessary sections of seminar for an expected
large senior class; meeting the required number of hours)

Why Consider the Model?
e Student well-being

o The 5-day schedule is taxing for students

o 3 blocks per day (2 hours and 10 minutes for a single class)

o Rigorous curriculum with no “breaks” during class. Students are always working and
expected to be engaged (e.g. no heads down, no movie days, etc.)
Down time consists of 30 minutes of lunch and 30 minutes of Club/Advisory time
Longer high school schedule than most area high schools
Extra day to work, volunteer, participate in outside programs, etc.
Potentially have programs here at City High during 5" day
Mimic changing work environment as City High is designed to prepare students for a
successful life after high school and more workplaces are transitioning to a 4-day week
o Students like the new model we’ve piloted (anecdotal feedback)

O O O O O

Benefits to Faculty and Staff:
e  Staff well-being
Burn-out from 5-day model
Planning time regularly extends well into the weekend
Longer day and year than many of their colleagues in other schools
Additional time for planning and collaboration, a strength at City High
o Better work-life balance
o Keep qualified professionals
e Recruit qualified professionals

O
O
O
O

Other benefits
o Recruitment tool for new students
o Potential budget savings from operating one less day per week
- Could be budget savings in a world of shrinking budgets while potentially
enhancing our core program
- Could be spent for additional faculty, counselors, TA’s, etc.
o Opportunity to look deeply at curriculum and make updates as necessary



EDSsYS. INC Minutes from May 19, 2021
) .

Board of Trustees Meeting
Education Delivery Systems Page 3 of 4

o City High 3.0
- Innovative approach to education
- Opportunity to continue setting trends among our peers and in leading the way —
many schools are currently modeled after us including Sci-Tech, Nazareth Prep

Benchmarking Other Schools and Districts:
e Only 1 urban school in the country
- Denver CO area, 27J (2018-2019 school-year)
16™ largest district in their state with 17,000 students, 4 high schools

o Retain and recruit quality teachers and staff
o More teacher time to plan and collaborate
o Reallocation of funds

- High School 8:30 a.m. - 4:32 p.m.

Research Findings: Center on Reinventing Public Education (CRPE)
e June 2018 Report

- 25 states with 550 districts

- No clear evidence on academic performance
o 2015 Colorado study found increases in math and reading for first 2 years
o 2017 Oregon study found decreases in math and reading, then returned to what they

had been
- Student and teacher attendance improves
- Student discipline issues decline

Workplace Findings:
e Microsoft - Japan subsidiary (2019)
- “Work-Life Choice Challenge” during August that examined work-life balance, aimed to boost
creativity and productivity
- 40% boost in productivity
- 4-day week was adopted permanently

The Board asked numerous questions regarding the potential impact on students, hopes, concerns and possibilities of the
four day model

Proposed Next Steps:
e Continue working through the schedule and scenarios as well as share additional information as
requested by the board.

o Get additional input from stakeholders: Faculty/Staff, Parents, Students
- Work with Catherine Nelson to develop focus group questions

Budget for 2021~2022

Budget tabled until June 2021 Board meeting. Board members will submit any questions they have before the next
meeting.

Executive Session

= Cindy Tananis motioned to go into executive session. Valerie Njie seconded the motion. The motion to go
into Executive session was unanimously approved.




EDsSYs, INC. Minutes from May 19, 2021

Board of Trustees Meeting

Education Delivery Systems Page 4 of 4

= Valarie Njie motioned to come out of executive session. Gerry Dudley seconded the motion. The motion
carried unanimously.
Adjudications

= Following review and consideration of the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and consideration
of the Recommendations of the Administration and the Board Officer, it is the final decision of the Board of
Trustees of City Charter High School that CS be deemed expelled for a total of 20 days, to be reduced to 10 days
upon presentation of evidence to the Administration of successful completion of professional counseling for her
drug use.

= Following review and consideration of the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and consideration
of the Recommendations of the Administration and the Board Officer, it is the final decision of the Board of
Trustees of City Charter High School that JW shall be deemed expelled for a total of 20 days.

David Lehman motioned to approve the adjudication as concerning CS as written. Valerie Njie seconded the motion. The
motion to accept the adjudication as written was unanimously approved.

Cindy Tananis motioned to approve the adjudication as concerning JW as written. Larry Hailsham seconded the motion.
The motion to accept the adjudication as written was unanimously approved.

Adjournment
Cindy Tananis made a motion to adjourn, it was seconded by Valerie Njie and carried unanimously.

The next regular Board of Trustees meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 19, 2021.

Submitted by,

Theresa Dillon — Secretary



ENROLLMENT TO DATE

Regular Education
Special Education

CATEGORY (Race by Gender)

White Male
White Female
Black Male

Black Female
Hispanic Male
Hispanic Female
Multi-Racial Male

Multi-Racial Female

Asian Male
Asian Female
American Indian
Other

CATEGORY (Race by Grade)

Black

White
Multi-Racial
Hispanic

Asian

American Indian

CATEGORY (Social Economic Status)

505
389

77.03% Grade 2020/2021

Enrollment Comparison
2019/2020

%Difference

116 22.97% 12th Male 40
12th Female 49
2020/2021 2019/2020 Total 89
16.83% 17.94% 11th Male 72
14.85% 15.51% 11th Female 76
22.97% 21.31% Total 148
30.50% 31.96% 10th Male 77
0.79% 0.56% 10th Female 75
0.59% 0.37% Total 152
6.14% 5.98% 9th Male 52
5.74% 5.61% 9th Female 64
0.79% 0.56% 116
0.40% 0.19% Total 505
0.40% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
505 535
9th 10th 11th 12th Total
13.27% 16.44% 16.04% 7.72% 53.47%
5.94% 9.11% 9.11% 7.52% 31.68%
2.38% 3.56% 3.76% 2.18% 11.88%
0.79% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 1.39%
0.20% 0.40% 0.40% 0.20% 1.19%
0.40% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.40%
9th 10th 11th 12th Total
15.25% 19.01% 18.61% 8.71% 61.58%
0.40% 1.19% 0.79% 0.20% 2.57%
7.33% 9.90% 9.90% 8.71% 35.84%

51
67
118
44
51
95
77
83
160
79
83
162
535

-21.6%
-26.9%
-24.6%
63.6%
49.0%
55.8%
0.0%
-9.6%
-5.0%
-34.2%
-22.9%
-28.4%
-5.6%

Aliquippa SD
Ambridge
Baldwin
Bethel Park
Brentwood
Carlynton
Chartiers Valley
Clairton City
Duquesne City
Gateway

Fox Chapel
Keystone Oaks
McKeesport
Montour SD
New Castle SD
New Kensington
North Hills
Northgate
Penn Hills

PPS

Quaker Valley
Shaler

South Park
Steel Valley
Sto-Rox
Washington
West Mifflin
Wilkinsburg
Woodland Hills

School Districts

505

0.00198
0.00198
0.005941
0.00396
0.00396
0.00396
0.00198
0
0.00198
0.005941
0
0.00198
0.013861
0.00198
0
0.00198
0.00198
0.00396
0.025743
0.768317
0.00198
0.00198
0.00198
0.021782
0.029703
0.00198
0.00198
0.041584
0.045545

100.00%



Student Enrollment

City High Metrics
As of May 31, 2021

Grade Level

Current Year/Prior

Notes

Year
Oth 116/162 Current Enrollment Significantly Lower than Prior Year
10th 152/160 Current Enrollment Comparable to Prior Year
11th 148/95 Current Enrollment Significantly Higher than Prior Year
Current Enrollment Significantly Lower than Prior Year
12th 89/118

Current School-wide Enrollment Lower than Prior Year
School-Wide Total: 510 current students/535 prior year

Personnel Management

Current Year/Prior Notes
Measure
Year

Administrative Turnover 0/0

Faculty Turnover 0/1

Staff Turnover 1/0

Open Positions 3/2 School Safety Officer; Math/Science TA; Math Electives
Teacher. There are additional planned vacancies (7) at
the end of the year that are being posted this month.

Promotions 0/0 We continue to have a number of promotions that are in
the pipeline that will be forthcoming by the end of the
year.

Leaves 0/1

School Management and Leadership

Measure

Current
Year*/Prior Year

Notes

Average Daily Membership

510.84/535.00

Applications: New 9th grade
(2025)

158/179

New 9th grade applications have surpassed last year’s
/ numbers and we are meeting our projected monthly

132/163 recruitment goals.
Suspensions > 1 day 3/0
Expulsions 2/0

37/N/A

Faculty Observations

Student Attendance %

93.11%/92.64%

Faculty/Staff Attendance %

98.78%/98.04%

Note: Through the end of March 2020 to present, we operated modified learning models due to the impact of

the COVID-19 pandemic.

Fiscal Health (As of May 31, 2021)

Measure

Description

Bank Balance

$5.060 million

P/L Comparison:
20-21 to 19-20 YTD

Income: $10.763 to $10.952 million
Expense: $10.158 to $10.660 million

Compliance and Reporting

Measure

Description

Notes

COVID Reporting

Required by the Health Department for all
COVID cases that are disclosed to a school

Submitted COVID case reports.

Preparation for PPS Annual
Audit

Targeted school-wide effort to prepare for

the PPS Annual Audit

96 items were requested. The
visit occurred on 6/3/21




City High Metrics
As of May 31, 2021

Initiatives/Grants

Initiative Purpose Fiscal Impact Notes
Grant (Division of ESSER I (Elementary & $217,488 Awarded! Grant period extends
Federal Programs) Secondary School Emergency until 9/30/21.
Relief) COVID-19 Grant
Grant (Division of ESSERII (Elementary & $966,036 Still developing our application;

the grant period extends until
2023.

Awarded on 5-10-21 for $1.5 M
for 3 years.

Federal Programs) Secondary School Emergency
Relief) COVID-19 Grant
Expanding Opportunities
Through Quality Charter

Schools Program (CSP)

$1.2M multi-year
grant opportunity

PACSP (Federal Grant
through PCPCS)

Elevator Pitch Training and coaching on $800 Opportunity provided by The

Training developing our case for support Heinz Endowments. Training
occurred on 4/30 and 5/11

Moonshot Grant Solicitation of bold ideas on $70,000 Not awarded. Received feedback

reimagining the future of and can resubmit in August.

learning.

Strategic Planning
Program
Revamped marketing
approaches for increasing
student recruitment:
-new website w/search
engine optimization
-digital online ads
-new director of enrollment
position (hired in August)
-Re-envisioned spring
campaign including a
series of commitment/

Date/Notes Program Date/Notes
Presentations to the
Board underway.
Extension until May
2023; our accreditation
status will not lapse in
the interim.
In-person visit held on

June 3rd,

New School Year Planning

Middle States Accreditation
Initial acceleration phase:
April-dJune 2020

PPS Annual Monitoring Visit

Fall phase: 20-21 Campaign
underway

Process kicks off this

orientation events: Virtual
Open House and In-Person

Open House held in March.

-Individual tours resumed
in March.

Current phase: 20-21 spring
Campaign underway

PPS Charter Renewal

summer and is scheduled
to conclude in the spring
of 2022




Edsys, Inc.

Education Delivery Systems

City High
A NEW Pittsburgh charter
high school

CITY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL

201 Stanwix Street
Suite 100
Pittsburgh, PA 15222
Tel. 412.690.2489
Fax 412.690.2316

Financial Report as of May 31, 2021

Presented on June 16, 2021
By the Finance Committee



Education Delivery Systems Financial Report
as of May 31, 2021

Table of Contents

Page
Comments on Financial Statements..................o 1
Comparative Balance Sheets as of May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020 ............ 2, 2a
Accounts Receivable Aging Summary as of May 31, 2021.............cccceeevnnnnn, 3
Accounts Payable Aging Summary as of May 31, 2021.......................... 4
Profit/Loss Statement Year to Date May 31, 2021 ...........ccoevviiiiinnnn. 5,6
(With Year to Date May 31, 2020 Comparison)
Profit/Loss Statement Year to Date May 31, 2021...............cooieininnne. 7,8
(With Fiscal 20/21 Budget Comparison)
Cash FIOW FOreCast........c.oviii i 9
Revenue Comparison YTD 2020/2021 vs 2019/2020.......ccccovieiiiiiiiininannn.. 10

Expense Comparison YTD 2020/2021 vs 2019/2020........c.cccovviiiiiniiiinnnnnnn. 11



Note #

Education Delivery Systems Financial Report
As of May 31, 2021

Comments on Financial Statements

General Note: Due to City High transitioning to virtual learning during COVID-19, for the first

and second trimester of the 20/21 school year, certain revenues and expenses will be impacted.

All revenues and expenses related to the Lunch Program will be reduced, as well as some
maintenance costs, transportation costs, wellness costs, and Student Activities costs.

Page five and seven - Foundation Grants

In July 2019, City Charter High received a $50,000 grant from Philadelphia Management Company.
The grant is unclear as to restrictions and intended use. Consistent with prior years, City High
intends to use these funds for scholarships awarded to Class of 2020 graduates.

$36,500 in scholarships were paid through May 2021 for the 16 2020 graduates who have
verified their college enrollment. Two awardees never verified college enrollment. Also, money
was returned in two cases where the student did not complete the year.

Note: The grant funds not used for scholarships for Class of 2020 graduates remain in Restricted
Cash on the Balance Sheet.

City High received final approval for a $64,000 grant from Partner4Work for fiscal 20/21.

The funds are to be reimbursed to City High as costs are incurred toward training for undergraduate
students in accordance with the grant. ~$15,000 in costs have been incurred and are awaiting
reimbursement through May 2021.

In addition, in December 2019 City High received a $10,000 grant from Claude Worthington
Benedum Foundation. The grant is restricted to fund a teacher training and symposium, which has
has been postponed and will take place in fiscal 20/21 or 21/22.

Pennsylvania Charter Schools Program Grant - On September 30, 2020, the Pennsylvania
Coalition of Public Charter Schools (PCPCS) was awarded an Expanding Opportunities Through
Quality Charter School Programs Grant from the US Department of Education. The grant award will
total $30 million over a grant period of 5 years (2021-2025). The funds are to be used to help expand
opportunities for students to attend excellent public charter schools and exceed state academic
standards. City High applied for and received approval for funding under this grant.

City High received approval for ~$900K for Year 1 (October 2021 thru September 2022)

and $200K each in Years 2 and 3 of the grant.

Page five and seven - Tuition - Regular and Special Education

Overall, monthly tuition payments received from Pittsburgh Public Schools (PPS) had been
trending higher each year since 07/08. This was due primarily to increased and more stable
student enrollment each year from the PPS and, more recently, increased tuition rates to help offset
the lack of retirement reimbursements from the PDE. Tuition rates were projected to remain
consistent with the final 19/20 rates in the 20/21 Budget.

Note 1: Student enrollment rebounded in fiscal 18/19, and was almost back to historical trends
prior to the Covid-19 pandemic. The pandemic has caused another dip in enrollment, particularly
in the incoming Freshman Class.

Student enrollment assumptions in the 20/21 budget are based on 19/20 actual enrollment.
Note 2: At the present time in 20/21, student enrollment is anticipated to be slightly below
the 19/20 enrollment trends. The new 9th grade class did not reach anticipated levels

as the average 9th grade membership is 116 as compared to the expected ~135.

As of May 2021, average student enrollment is down 25 students as compared to

May 2020 (510 vs 535 students) - primarily due to Freshman Class (See above).

We will monitor enrollment numbers closely during the 20/21 year to determine their effect
on expected tuition revenue. It should be noted that after late January of each school year,
enrollment numbers will only decline, as no new students are added after that time.

Also of note is that special education enrollment (and incremental special education tuition
rates) is higher than historically projected in the past budgets. The budgets anticipated that
15% of total student enrollment would be special education students, while the actual special
education enrollment was approximately 22% in fiscal 18/19. This created a large positive

Financial Report

Page 1



variance in actual Tuition - Special Education Revenue as compared to the budgets.
Beginning in fiscal 19/20, and continuing in fiscal 20/21, budget has anticipated a 21%
special education enrollment rate.

Note 3: Pittsburgh Public pays tuition for the first 4 months of the school year based on
estimated enrollment from the previous year. In November of each year, PPS reconciles to the
actual enrollment and adjusts their payments accordingly. Therefore, the effects of the lower
enrollment on fiscal 20/21 tuition revenue began to show in the November and December
financial statements. However, PPS underpaid for special education students in November
and December 2020. This, coupled with an increase in the PPS tuition rate for special
education students of ~$3,000 (retroactive to the beginning of the school year) resulted in

a large payment from PPS for tuition in January 2021 of ~$1.5 million. See Cash Flows on
Page 9.

Page five and seven- Revenue from State Sources

Amounts represent reimbursements received each year from the state for a portion of

City Charter High's costs related to that fiscal year, in accordance with state regulations.
Costs eligible for partial reimbursement currently include special education, facility rent, and
school nurse expenses.

Note from Fiscal 13/14: The 11/12 Pennsylvania State budget eliminated the
reimbursement for Social Security/Medicare expenses incurred by Pennsylvania public schools.
No reimbursement has been included in subsequent budgets.

Note from Fiscal 14/15: The 14/15 Pennsylvania State Budget eliminated the
reimbursement for the 50% of PSERS Retirement expenses incurred by charter schools.

No reimbursement has been budgeted in subsequent fiscal years.

The Lease Reimbursement from PDE is currently in arrears for two years (14/15 and 16/17).
City High received the 17/18 Lease Reimbursement of ~$46K in February 2019 (~$20K short of
the 18/19 budget). It is not clear as to whether the school will ever receive the 14/15 and
16/17 reimbursements (~$60K each). Also, Lease Reimbursement for 19/20 was budgeted,
applied for, and approved by the PDE. ~$38K was received in December 2020.

The Ready to Learn Grant for 19/20 was applied for in November 2019 ($28,823). It was
approved and funded in December 2019, and was fully spent in the 19/20 year.

The Ready to Learn Grant for 20/21 was applied for in October 2020 ($28,823). It was
approved and funded in October 2020.

The PASmart Grant was new for fiscal 19/20 and was targeted for K-12 Computer Science and
STEM Education in Pennsylvania schools. City High applied for, and was approved for $35,000
in funding. All funds were received and expended in accordance with the grant stipulations

in fiscal 19/20. A final report has been filed and the grant has been closed.

City High applied and was awarded a Covid-19 Health and Safety Grant for Reopening Schools
from the Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency (PCCD). The grant award is for
$89,873.00. The funds were to be spent or committed between 7/3/2020 and 10/30/2020.
City High has spent the entire amount under the grant, and a final fiscal report has been filed
and accepted. The grant funds were received in November 2020. The grant is closed.

In December, 2020 City High applied for the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief Fund (ESSER) in the amount of $217,488. These funds can be spent anytime between
March 2020 and September 2021, regardless of when the grant is applied for and approved.

The application was approved by the PDE in February 2021 and funding began in April 2021.

In January 2021, City High was notified that it has been awarded a second Elementary and
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund Grant (ESSER II) in the amount of $966,036.

This grant begins in the 20-21 school year and extends into 21-22 and 22-23. City High has not
yet applied for the ESSER II grant funds.

City High has also been awarded a Safe Schools Grant in 20-21 for $24,815.10. The grant is
awaiting final approval and will ultimately be funded upon City High's completion of
expeditures in accordance with the grant budget, and submission of the expenditures to the
Safe Schools Department.

Finally, in February 2021, City High's application was approved for a $5,000 Special Education
Page 1

Financial Report



Covid Mitigation Impact Grant. Funds can be expended thru September 2021.

Page five and seven - Title I, II, and V, Lunch/Milk Subsidies, and ERATE
Amounts represent federal funds received or accrued and applied toward the specific
programs in the applicable fiscal years.

NOTE 1: Title V funding has been suspended for the last five fiscal years.

NOTE 2:

The application for Title I, I, and IV (new in 17/18) funding of approximately $320K for fiscal 20/21
was filed in September 2020, has been approved, and funding began in November 2020.

YTD in fiscal 20/21, City High has received remaining payments from the 19/20 Title I grant
in the amount of ~$77K. All grant funds have been received and spent. The final report was
submitted to the PDE in August 2020. The grant has been closed.

Funding of the 20/21 grant began in November 2020.

Page five and seven - Other Financing Sources

Amount represents monthly interest earned on MMAX account with Huntington Bank and,
beginning in March 2013, certificates of deposit placed with Huntington Bank and, later, PNC Bank
(See Note below).

Interest earned on the MMAX accounts at Huntington was approximately .03% in May '21,
as interest rates have dropped severely in reaction to COVID-19.

NOTE from Fiscal 14/15: In fiscal 12/13, City High transferred the majority of its cash to
Huntington Bank, leaving a small balance under the FDIC Insured limit of $250K, in

the PNC Account. During fiscal 13/14, the PNC account was utilized as a segregated

account to pay the premiums, administrative costs, and monthly claims of City High's

self-funded medical benefit plan placed with Highmark. Since fiscal 14/15, the PNC account was
with a balance of ~$49,000. The account was closed in November 2017 with the funds transferred
to the Huntington Bank Operating Account.

All other PNC accounts were closed as of June 30, 2013.

In addition, City High invested $1,000,000 into one year Certificates of Deposit placed first with
Huntington Bank, and later with PNC Bank in $250,000 increments. The CD's were first opened in
March 2013, and have matured and been reinvested for various terms over the years.

In May 2020, the funds were reinvested through PNC Bank in four 3 month $250,000

FDIC insured CD's, earning interest at rates ranging from .15% to .2% (See COVID-19 effect on
interest rates above). These CD's matured in August 2020, and were reinvested into 4 new

3 month $250,000 CD's in January 2021, earning interest between .05% and .02%.

City High is in the process of reinvesting into new CD's as all CD's are currently matured.

The interest of ~$25,000 on the matured one year CD's was paid to City High in May 2020.

Page five and seven - Miscellaneous Receipts
Amount represents all miscellaneous monies received by City Charter High, such
as donations for the Robotics, Drama, Mentoring/Career Readiness Programs, School
Recycling Program, etc...Other receipts are primarily from students to cover their portion of
costs for participation in various school sponsored educational and recreational activities,
as well as student payments for MOS certifications, and loss or damage to school property.
The SAGE and Robotics Programs actively fundraise and solicit donations/grants to help defray the
costs of various local and national competitions. Amounts received are included in Misc. Receipts.
The Robotics Program received $10,500 in unrestricted grants in 19/20.
The transportation costs for fiscal 18/19 of ~$39K were billed to the four school districts in
January 2020. The unpaid balance is a portion of the A/R - Other on the Balance Sheet and is
included in miscellaneous receipts on the Profit/Loss Statement in 19/20.
In fiscal 19/20, miscellaneous receipts also includes ~$10K of forfeitures from the 401(k) Plan
that have been used to fund current employer match and nonelective contributions.
In fiscal 20/21, the miscellaneous receipts represent refunds of "$10K in deposits
for field trips and activities that were cancelled due to Covid-19, an insurance renewal credit
from UPMC of ~$21K, and a refund of unused monies remaining in an educational trust of ~$18K.
The insurance credit and the educational trust refund were not budgeted in fiscal 20/21.
The Robotics Program has also begun to receive funding in fiscal 20/21.

Page 1

Financial Report



Page five and seven - Personnel Services

Salaries for existing positions are budgeted to remain flat for fiscal 20/21 as there were no raises

for the fiscal 20/21 year. An across the board salary increase of 3% was given in fiscal 19/20.

The 20/21 budget does include the addition of a newly established position - Director of Enrollment.
However, the Director of Enrollment was hired from the existing Ed Leader staff, with no replacement
at the Ed Leader position, resulting in a savings of ~$70,000 in salary and benefits.

Benefits are budgeted at 49.1% of salaries for fiscal 20/21 based on the prior year's actual
experience and projected benefit costs in fiscal 20/21, primarily City High's required increase in

it's annual PSERS contribution for employees, currently at 34.51% of salary.

NOTE: In an attempt to offset rising benefit costs, in fiscal 15/16 City High converted to a high
deductible medical benefit plan, and an associated HRA. The premium payments are ~$40K/mo.
compared to ~$55K/mo. in prior years under the traditional plan. Under the high deductible

plan, City High pays 85% of the employee deductible costs incurred. City High has continued to offer
the high deductible plan thru fiscal 20/21. There was no increase in premiums from fiscal 19/20.

The total benefit expense in 20/21 should be higher than prior year due to the increased salary

percentage as mandated by the PDE for PSERS contributions (34.51% in 20/21 vs. 34.29% in 19/20).

However, beginning in 17/18, City High has implemented an alternative retirement plan (ARP)
open to newly hired employees only. Under the ARP, City High will match the employee's pre-tax
contribution, up to 7%, as well as provide a non-elective contribution to each employee of 5%, for a
maximum annual contribution of 12% per employee (as compared to 34.51% under PSERS).
Currently there are 33 employees participating in the ARP rather than PSERS (representing over
one-third of the workforce). City High has been tracking the savings on an annual basis.

**In fiscal 17/18, 18/19, and 19/20, the ARP generated ~$85,000, $165,000, and $300,000
in savings, respectively, for a three-year total savings to City High of ~$550,000.%*

Please Note** YTD Benefit Expense is lower in fiscal 20/21 than 19/20 due to the savings of the

401(k) Plan vs the PSERS Plan.

In addition, the estimated accrual for Attendance and Benefit Bonuses are carried as a liability

on City High's balance sheet for the entire fiscal year. The liabilities for these bonuses are

estimated based on prior year payouts. The 19/20 bonuses were paid in the August 15,

2020 payroll. The accrual for 20/21 is based on the actual bonuses paid for 19/20 and will
continue to be carried on the balance sheet in fiscal 20/21, revalued for the June 30, 2021

audit, and paid out in August 2021.

Note that upon return to in person instruction in February, several staff members elected to take

an advance on their attendance bonus to help pay for commuting expense. The total amount of
advance is immaterial and has been deducted from the Attendance Incentive Accrual as of 2/28/21.

Page five and seven - Other Professional Services and Other Purchased Services

Costs for Other Professional Services will continue to trend higher for 20/21, as expenses are
incurred.

Projection due to tuition payments to approved private schools for certain special education
students related to 20/21, as well as other special education costs, and higher anticipated ESL costs.
In addition, City High is paying for contracted services for adjunct teachers, cyber school and
alternative school for certain students, and Point Park tuition fees for students that were
previously offered free of charge. In fiscal 16/17, City High also began offering a "College in High
School" class through CCAC.

In addition, City High has begun new targeted advertising and marketing campaigns in order to
continue to attract new students, as enrollment decreased in 17/18 for the first time in school
history. As a result, advertising costs will trend higher in fiscal 20/21 than previous years.

In addition, there will be costs associated with operating during the Covid-19 pandemic that are
just now being identified and realized. These will be tracked and disclosed as incurred.

Finally, attorney fees are higher in 20/21 than 19/20 due to the retirement of the school's
previous solicitor and the subsequent hiring of a new firm with higher billing rates.

Special education expenses were expected to be higher in 20/21 than 19/20 due to higher private
school tuition and other specialized services, primarily because of an increase in students

requiring these services. Special education enrollment, as a percentage of total student
enrollment, has risen from ~15% to ~22% over the last several fiscal years.

Note that Special Education expenses @ June 30, 2020 reflect an accrual of ~$106K for costs
related to 18/19 and prior for 4010 students that were yet been billed by the PDE, as well

as ~$65K for 4010 students for 19/20, also not yet billed by the PDE. This also represents the
$171K and $65K in Accrued Liabilities on the 6/30/20 and 5/31/21 Balance Sheets,

Financial Report

Page 1



10.

11.

12.

respectively. The 18/19 and prior costs were subsequently billed and paid in July 2020.
As a result of the virtual learning environment, Special Education Costs, including related
transportation, have not been as high as budgeted, nor as high as fiscal 19/20.

Page six and eight - Rental - Land & Buildings

In addition to the increased rent for the new leased facility, City High began paying for certain
utilities that were included in the lease payment in the old facility, including steam heat,

water and sewage, and electricity. Utilities costs are budgeted based on actual costs in 18/19.
Utilities are actually trending lower than prior years due to efforts by the Maintenance team to

to reduce steam usage (cutting cost of steam by ~1/3 in 17/18). The Utilities budget was decreased
for fiscal 19/20 to reflect this, and decreased again for 20/21 based on actual 19/20 costs.

In November 2019, the lease payment increased by $ ~2,083 per month (to $117,267), in
accordance with the lease agreement. This increase is included in the 20/21 budget.

In June 2017, City High signed an Amendment to the existing lease in order to lease additional
space for the build-out of a new Fitness Center for students. Annual rent increased by $50,000
($4,167 /month) beginning in September 2017. This increase was included in the 20/21 budget.

In addition, the lease term was extended by five years, to August 2027.

No lease escalation was billed or paid in fiscal 19/20. Lease escalation related to fiscal 19/20
of ~$35K was billed and paid in August 2020.

July rent was prepaid in both June 2020 and June 2019.

Page six and eight - Depreciation Expense

Change in depreciation expense from 18/19 is due to additional depreciation for the leasehold
improvements and equipment for the Fitness Center, new laptops purchased for incoming 9th grade
class, new classroom furniture, and an upgraded firewall system in 18/19, offset by newly

retired assets (primarily computer equipment) for which depreciation is no longer applicable.

Page two - Accounts Receivable and Grants Receivable

See comments under Note #1 above regarding Grants Receivable. The amount at June 30, 2020

and May 31, 2021 represents amount due under the Partner4Work Grant.

City High traditionally began invoicing for tuition for each new school year in October.

This allowed a few months for enrollment to stabilize and eliminated the need for numerous

billing adjustments. The suburban school districts were invoiced for August thru October 20XX

at that time. However, in 16/17, City High began billing in accordance with new State regulations.
According to these regulations, City High must first bill each school district by the 5th of each month,
allowing 30 days for the school district to make payment. If payment is not received in 30 days, City
High may then apply to the PDE for tuition redirection for nonpaying school districts. In fiscal 18/19
City High began billing the school districts in October and applied for the first tuition redirection in
early November. This application was returned for corrections. The PDE website was then closed for
applications in December. The January 2019 application was also returned for corrections. The next
application was submitted and returned in May 2019. Funding of ~$278K was ultimately received

in October 2019.

This effectively means that tuition redirection was not received from the PDE for

nonpaying school districts for all of fiscal 18/19, resulting in extremely high A/R @ 6/30/19.

July tuition was billed with the final reconciliations for the various school districts

in September 2019, with payment of tuition redirection of ~$278K finally paid in October 2019.

A similar scenario occurred in fiscal 19/20 and 20/21, primarily due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

City High had not received any tuition redirection from the PDE since March 2020, which
represented billings through January 2020. This results in an extremely high A/R again @
6/30/20. Over one year of tuition redirection was outstanding from the PDE as of 2/28/21.

City High has completed the reconciliations for fiscal 19/20. They were submitted to the PDE in

late January 2021, with paymentof ~$263K received in March 2021.

It should be noted that some of the school districts that were previously paid through tuition
redirection have begun making payments on their own to City High. This has resulted in the
A/R not being as high as might be expected at 5/31/21, given the lack of redirection payments
for the 20/21 school year.

Page two and two(a) - Fixed Assets and Debt

Beginning in fiscal 10/11 through fiscal 19/20, operating funds have been used to purchase
computers for the new freshman class. The computers are capitalized as fixed assets

(see Page 2) and are being depreciated over 4 years beginning 9/1/20.

Additionally, in 17/18, a new Fitness Center was completed, with the cost to City High capped at
$200,000. As of February 2018, the Fitness Center, including the new elevator access, has been
completed and in use, the costs have been capitalized and depreciated over the new extended lease

Financial Report

Page 1



13.

14.

15.

term of ten years. The equipment purchased for the Fitness Center has been capitalized as Furniture
and Fixtures, and depreciated over 5 years. Note that the Fitness Center and equipment were

placed in service in late October 2017. Depreciation commenced effective 11/1/2017.
Depreciation related to the new elevator commenced on 2/1/2018, when it was placed in service.

All capital leases have been paid off and City High has no long-term or short-term debt outstanding.

Note the the refurbished computers originally purchased for the new 9th grade class in August
2020 were ultimately sent back to the vendor in early January 2021, and replaced with newer
computers, more suitable to the virtual learning environment. The vendor has agreed to provide
reimbursement of the original computers at 50% of original purchase price, exclusive of
batteries. The overall loss on the transaction is ~$37,000, and is included in the May 2021
financial statements. The resulting reimbursement of $15,760 was received in May 2021.

Page six and eight - Student Transportation

In 07/08 through 18/19 City High helped to subsidize the student trips to Costa Rica, New York,
and Niagara Falls utilizing interest earned on the CD and MMAX accounts, as well as operating
funds. In fiscal 19/20, City High planned again help to subsidize these trips and the budget reflects
these costs, however all Spring 2020 and Spring 2021 trips were cancelled due to Covid-19.

NOTE: The amount of student contributions and fundraising associated with the Costa Rica

and Niagara Falls trips for 18/19 was repaid from the Student Activities Account to the City High
Operating Account in November, after the completion of the fiscal 18/19 audit. Student payments
toward the cancelled 19/20 trips (including New York City in 19/20) that had accumulated in the
Student Activities Account, were either refunded to the students or rolled over (See Below).

Other student transportation costs include daily transportation of special education students to
approved private schools. This cost began to trend higher in the second half of 17/18, and has
continued to trend higher in 18/19 and 19/20, as City High has additional students enrolled in
private schools (transporting ~10 students either to private schools or to City High prior to Covid-19).
Until in-person instruction was reinstated on a full time basis (March/April 2021),
transportation costs were minimal.

Note that all trips in 19/20 were cancelled due to COVID-19. Students were refunded their
deposits for the Costa Rica trip, net of airfare vouchers that were issued to them from
American Airlines. Students were also refunded for the New York City trip and the Niagara Falls
trip, except in the case where deposits were rolled over for future trips or toward Senior Fees.
No student trips at all were taken during fiscal 20/21, and no deposits were collected.

Page six and eight - Other Purchased Services

Other Purchased Services (except for Advertising) should be comparable to 19/20, and include
janitorial costs, extermination and pest control, cleaning of linens and uniforms for cafeteria staff,
and other miscellaneous services. Amount is lower than prior year due to the timing of insurance
premiums and transportation payments, as well as the virtual environment for staff and students.
In addition, monthly cleaning costs have decreased due to the cleaning company providing

twice a week cleaning services rather than daily (when staff and certain students were only in

the building once a week in the virtual learning environment for Trimester 1 and early

Trimester 2).

Page two - Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at 6/30/20 represent advance deposits for software support and maintenance
contracts for fiscal 20/21, as well as Fall 2020 field trip deposits. In addition,

Financial Report

Page 1



EDSYS, INC.

Comparative Balance Sheets
As of May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020

Internal As Audited
May 31, 21 June 30, 20
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - CHECKING AND SAVINGS
1010 - PNC and Huntington Banks
1011 - Huntington Bank - Restricted 44,878.89 79,921.58
1010 - Huntington Bank - Unrestricted 4,015,851.97 3,271,580.14
1012 - PNC Investments CD's 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Total 1010 - PNC and Huntington Bank 5,060,730.86 4,351,501.72
1100 - Petty Cash Account 200.00 200.00
Total 1000 - CHECKING AND SAVINGS 5,060,930.86 4,351,701.72
Accounts Receivable
1200 - Accounts Receivable Curr 883,296.86 803,520.57
11. 1220 - Grants Receivable 14,276.75 33,274.60
1300 - Accounts Receivable Other 23,773.00 76,545.45
Total Accounts Receivable 921,346.61 913,340.62
Other Current Assets
15. 1400 - Prepaid Expenses 40,684.50 233,026.61
1500 - Construction-in-Progress 0.00 0.00
Total Other Current Assets 40,684.50 233,026.61
Total Current Assets 6,022,961.97 5,498,068.95
Fixed Assets
12. 1700 - Fixed Assets 2,906,543.36 2,785,057.54
1800 - Less Accumulated Drepreciation (2,426,567.51) (2,211,226.12)
Net Fixed Assets 479,975.85 573,831.42
TOTAL ASSETS 6,502,937.82 6,071,900.37

FINANCIAL REPORT



EDSYS, INC.

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
As of May 31, 2021 and June 30, 2020

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Total Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Liabilities
2390 - Payroll Liabilities
8. 2450 - Attendance Incentive
2460 - Benefits Incentive
2500 - Student Card Deposits
2600 - Deferred Revenue

Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Equity
3900 - Net Assets - Unrestricted
Board Designated - Lease Payments
Board Designated - Retirement Contributions
Temporarily Restricted
Opening Balance Equity
Net Income (Loss)
Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

May 31, 21

5,796.89
5,796.89

65,486.65
33,174.80
133,600.00
24,000.00
13,043.71

269,305.16

275,102.05

5,497,309.05
58,333.00
0.00
60,500.00
6,968.96
604,724.76
6,227,835.77

6,502,937.82

FINANCIAL REPORT

June 30, 20
I

9,283.94
9,283.94

235,872.66
31,273.35
136,400.00
24,000.00
13,924.01
0.00

441,470.02

450,753.96

4,829,347.70
58,333.00
0.00
60,500.00
6,968.96
665,996.75
5,621,146.41

6,071,900.37

Page 2(a)



Aliquippa School District
Ambridge Area School District
Baldwin-Whitehall

Bethel Park School District
Brentwood Borough

Carlynton School District
Charleroi School District
Chartiers Valley School District
Clairton City School District
Duquesne School District

East Allegheny School District
Fox Chapel School District
Gateway School District
Hampton School District
Keystone Oaks School District
McKeesport Area School District
Montour

New Castle School District
New Kensington-Arnold

North Allegheny School District
Northgate School District
North Hills School District
Penn Hills School District
Pittsburgh Public Schools
Quaker Valley School District
Riverview School District
Shaler Area School District
South Park School District
Steel Valley

Sto-Rox

Washington School District
West Allegheny School District
West Mifflin School District
Wilkinsburg Borough
Woodland Hills

A/R Aging Summary

EDSYS, Inc.

As of May 31, 2021

Current 1-30 31 -60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL
3,554.69 1,768.95 5,323.64
2,961.46 2,961.46
9,414.18 3,376.67 12,790.85
9,901.90 -436.73 9,465.17
8,326.41 1,189.44 9,515.85
7,978.22 3,843.31 11,821.53

0.00

9,346.18 -52.30 9,293.88
11,813.73 11,813.73

6,191.66 6,191.66
1,936.66 1,936.66

0.00

21,370.92 1,186.75 22,557.67
0.00

4,910.89 2,455.45 7,366.34
22,644.01 35,092.93 57,736.94
5,253.29 5,253.29
24,700.68 24,700.68

3,300.55 1,650.28 4,950.83
0.00

16,873.47 12,052.47 28,925.94
4,404.69 4,404.69
66,169.61 47,556.66 113,726.27
0.00

6,123.40 3,061.71 9,185.11
0.00

3,783.37 18,092.47 21,875.84
2,070.69 2,070.69
69,336.24 -22,501.36 46,834.88
66,159.95 102,862.18 169,022.13
3,557.43 3,557.43
5,746.73 5,746.73

4,051.09 4,051.09
152,302.16 152,302.16
115,637.32 2,276.40 117,913.72
0.00 625,623.78 0.00 -52.30 257,725.38 883,296.86

Financial Report

Page 3



EDSYS, Inc.

A/P Aging Summary
As of May 31, 2021

Current 1-30 31-60 61 -90 >90 TOTAL

HD Supplies Facilities Maintenance 2,572.23 1,315.20 3,887.43
Imler's Poultry 136.00 136.00
L.M. Colker Company 180.78 180.78
Reinhart Food Service, LLC 445.22 445.22
Schneider's Dairy, Inc. 75.29 75.29
US Foods, Inc. 1,072.17 1,072.17

4,481.69 1,315.20 0.00 0.00 # 0.00 5,796.89

Financial Report

Page 4



o

EDSYS, INC.
Profit/Loss With Previous Year Comparison

July 2020 through May 2021

6000 - REVENUE/LOCAL SOURCES

Foundation Grants

Tuition - Regular

Tuition - Special Education
School Lunch Proceeds
School Store Proceeds
Dell/Lenovo Reimbursements

Total 6000 - REVENUE/LOCAL SOURCES
7000 - REV FROM STATE SOURCES

Special Ed Reimbursement
Lease Reimbursements

Covid-19 Health and Safety Grant
PAsmart Grant

Nurse Reimbursement

Ready to Learn Block Grant

Total 7000 - REV FROM STATE SOURCES
8000 - REV FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

ERATE Revenue

Title I, Il, and IV Revenue
ESSER | and SECIM Grants
Lunch/Milk Subsidies

Total 8000 - REV FROM FEDERAL SOURCES
9000 - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Other Financing Sources
Miscellaneous Receipts

Jul '20-May '21 Jul '19-May '20 Difference
14,306.75 80,718.24 (66,411.49)
7,382,900.91 7,766,565.90 (383,664.99)
2,702,841.24 2,416,013.85 286,827.39
8,128.20 51,152.50 (43,024.30)
688.00 11,951.50 (11,263.50)
0.00 0.00 0.00

10,108,865.10

10,326,401.99

(217,536.89)

Total 9000 - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Total Income
Gross Profit

0.00 0.00 0.00
38,004.98 0.00 38,004.98
89,873.00 0.00 89,873.00

0.00 26,764.72 (26,764.72)
10,083.30 0.00 10,083.30
28,823.00 28,823.00 0.00

166,784.28 55,587.72 111,196.56
1,367.42 8,483.60 (7.116.18)
303,541.68 320,935.65 (17,393.97)
104,336.46 0.00 104,336.46
7,005.30 117,217.18 (110,211.88)
416,250.86 446,636.43 (30,385.57)
3,294.79 54,520.58 (51,225.79)
67,935.31 69,225.14 (1,289.83)
71,230.10 123,745.72 (52,515.62)

10,763,130.34

10,952,371.86

(189,241.52)

10,763,130.34

10,952,371.86

(189,241.52)

Expense
7. 100/200 - PERSONNEL SERVICES
Salaries 4,877,944.38 4,861,327.61 16,616.77
Benefits 2,199,233.19 2,269,087.44 (69,854.25)
Total 100/200 - PERSONNEL SERVICES 7,077,177.57 7,130,415.05 (53,237.48)
300 - PURCHASED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Technology 71,988.60 63,831.10 8,157.50
Special Education 130,642.03 393,214.02 (262,571.99)
8. Other 304,605.65 347,225.32 (42,619.67)
Total 300 - PURCHASED PROFESSIONAL 507,236.28 804,270.44 (297,034.16)

FINANCIAL REPORT

Page 5



13.

14.

17.

16.
10.

EDSYS, INC.
Profit/Loss With Previous Year Comparison

July 2020 through May 2021

Expense

400 - PURCHASED PROPERTY SERVICES
Repair & Maint - Bldgs & Tech
Utilities
Rental - Land & Bldgs
Rental - Equipment

Total 400 - PURCHASED PROPERTY SERV.

500 - OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES
Student Transportation
Insurance
Communications & Advertising
Other Purchased Services

Total 500 - OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES

600 - SUPPLIES
General Supplies
Lunches, School Store, Refreshments
Books,Periodicals, Software

Total 600 - SUPPLIES

700 - PROPERTY
Technical Equipment
Depreciation Expense
Loss on Disposal of Assets

Total 700 - PROPERTY

800 - OTHER
Dues and Fees
Student Awards

Total 800 - OTHER

Total Expense

Net Income (Loss)

Jul '20-May '21 Jul '19-May '20 Difference
3,764.66 9,211.47 (5,446.81)
109,688.48 131,393.55 (21,705.07)
1,442,196.13 1,399,066.68 43,129.45
81,382.21 131,087.03 (49,704.82)
1,637,031.48 1,670,758.73 (33,727.25)
71,137.53 217,946.02 (146,808.49)
67,719.33 61,359.77 6,359.56
118,779.90 53,410.45 65,369.45
105,175.82 123,685.03 (18,509.21)
362,812.58 456,401.27 (93,588.69)
151,940.78 153,167.11 (1,226.33)
18,896.52 114,605.29 (95,708.77)
68,000.76 53,592.77 14,407.99
238,838.06 321,365.17 (82,527.11)
40,862.16 42,625.46 (1,763.30)
220,084.68 229,744.78 (9,660.10)
36,412.77 0.00 36,412.77
297,359.61 272,370.24 24,989.37
450.00 5,028.60 (4,578.60)
37,500.00 0.00 37,500.00
37,950.00 5,028.60 32,921.40

10,158,405.58

10,660,609.50

(502,203.92)

604,724.76

291,762.36

312,962.40

FINANCIAL REPORT

Page 6



o

Gross Profit

7.

EDSYS, INC.

Profit/Loss With Budget Comparison
July 2020 through May 2021

6000 - REVENUE/LOCAL SOURCES

Foundation Grants

Tuition - Regular

Tuition - Special Education
School Lunch Proceeds
School Store Proceeds
Dell/Lenovo Reimbursements

Total 6000 - REVENUE/LOCAL SOURCES
7000 - REV FROM STATE SOURCES

Special Ed Reimbursement
Lease Reimbursements

Covid-19 Health and Safety Grant
PASmart Grant

Nurse Reimbursement

Ready to Learn Block Grant

Total 7000 - REV FROM STATE SOURCES
8000 - REV FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

ERATE Revenue

Title I, Il, and IV Revenue
ESSER | and SECIM Grants
Lunch/Milk Subsidies

Total 8000 - REV FROM FEDERAL SOURCES
9000 - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Other Financing Sources
Miscellaneous Receipts

Total 9000 - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Total Income

100/200 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

Salaries
Benefits

Total 100/200 - PERSONNEL SERVICES
300 - PURCHASED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Technology
Special Education
Other

Total 300 - PURCHASED PROFESSIONAL

Fiscal 20/21 YTD
Jul '20-May '21 Budget Remaining
14,306.75 64,000.00 49,693.25
7,382,900.91 9,003,420.00 1,620,519.09
2,702,841.24 2,459,306.00 (243,535.24)
8,128.20 75,000.00 66,871.80
688.00 15,000.00 14,312.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
10,108,865.10 11,616,726.00 1,507,860.90
0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
38,004.98 45,000.00 6,995.02
89,873.00 0.00 (89,873.00)
0.00 0.00
10,083.30 10,000.00 (83.30)
28,823.00 30,000.00 1,177.00
166,784.28 185,000.00 18,215.72
1,367.42 10,000.00 8,632.58
303,541.68 300,000.00 (3,541.68)
104,336.46 0.00 (104,336.46)
7,005.30 170,000.00 162,994.70
416,250.86 480,000.00 63,749.14
3,294.79 20,000.00 16,705.21
67,935.31 50,000.00 (17,935.31)
71,230.10 70,000.00 (1,230.10)
10,763,130.34 12,351,726.00 1,588,595.66
10,763,130.34 12,351,726.00 1,588,595.66
4,877,944.38 5,675,700.00 797,755.62
2,199,233.19 2,713,368.00 514,134.81
7,077,177.57 8,389,068.00 1,311,890.43
71,988.60 60,000.00 (11,988.60)
130,642.03 310,000.00 179,357.97
304,605.65 280,000.00 (24,605.65)
507,236.28 650,000.00 142,763.72

FINANCIAL REPORT

Page 7



13.

14.

17.

16.
10.

EDSYS, INC.
Profit/Loss With Budget Comparison

July 2020 through May 2021

Expense
400 - PURCHASED PROPERTY SERVICES
Repair & Maint - Bldgs & Tech
Utilities
Rental - Land & Bldgs
Rental - Equipment
Total 400 - PURCHASED PROPERTY SERV.
500 - OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES
Student Transportation
Insurance
Communications & Advertising
Other Purchased Services
Total 500 - OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES
600 - SUPPLIES
General Supplies
Lunches, School Store, Refreshments
Books,Periodicals, Software
Total 600 - SUPPLIES
700 - PROPERTY
Technical Equipment
Depreciation Expense
Loss on Disposal of Assets
Total 700 - PROPERTY
800 - OTHER
Dues and Fees
Student Awards
Total 800 - OTHER

Total Expense

Net Income (Loss)

Carryforward from 19/20
Carryforward to 21/22

Fiscal 20/21 YTD

Jul '20-May '21 Budget Remaining
3,764.66 4,500.00 735.34
109,688.48 200,000.00 90,311.52
1,442,196.13 1,437,192.00 (5,004.13)
81,382.21 85,000.00 3,617.79
1,637,031.48 1,726,692.00 89,660.52
71,137.53 290,000.00 218,862.47
67,719.33 65,000.00 (2,719.33)
118,779.90 155,000.00 36,220.10
105,175.82 140,000.00 34,824.18
362,812.58 650,000.00 287,187.42
151,940.78 176,000.00 24,059.22
18,896.52 170,000.00 151,103.48
68,000.76 65,000.00 (3,000.76)
238,838.06 411,000.00 172,161.94
40,862.16 40,000.00 (862.16)
220,084.68 242,200.00 22,115.32
36,412.77 0.00 (36,412.77)
297,359.61 282,200.00 (15,159.61)
450.00 2,500.00 2,050.00
37,500.00 50,000.00 12,500.00
37,950.00 52,500.00 14,550.00
10,158,405.58 12,161,460.00 2,003,054.42

__ 60472476

FINANCIAL REPORT

190,266.00

4,300,000.00

4,490,266.00

(324,585.76)

Page 8



Beginning Balance 07-01-20

July 2020

August 2020

September 2020

October 2020

November 2020

December 2020

January 2021

February 2021

March 2021

April 2021

May 2021

June 2021

Ending Balance

Budget 20-21

A = Actual
E = Estimate

EDSYS, INC.

Cash Flow Forecast
July 2020 through June 2021

Cash In Cash Out Net In/(Out) Balance
4,351,701.72 A 0.00 A 4,351,701.72 A 4,351,701.72
996,498.64 A 993,844.61 A 2,654.03 A 4,354,355.75
854,764.40 A 838,215.89 A 16,548.51 A 4,370,904.26
904,895.17 A 804,859.06 A 100,036.11 A 4,470,940.37
1,115,078.68 A 1,416,975.12 A (301,896.44) A 4,169,043.93
888,132.26 A 851,364.41 A 36,767.85 A 4,205,811.78
593,198.02 A 729,477.38 A (136,279.36) A 4,069,532.42
1,715,265.62 A 965,007.81 A 750,257.81 A 4,819,790.23
970,328.96 A 746,438.15 A 223,890.81 A 5,043,681.04
1,050,657.45 A 843,121.99 A 207,535.46 A 5,251,216.50
763,623.33 A 994,257.95 A (230,634.62) A 5,020,581.88
982,969.78 A 942,620.80 A 40,348.98 A 5,060,930.86
975,000.00 E 1,200,000.00 E (225,000.00) E 4,835,930.86
11,810,412.31 * 11,326,183.17 484,229.14 4,835,930.86
12,351,726.00 * 12,161,460.00 190,266.00 4,490,266.00 **

*

Excludes Beg. Cash Balance

** Represents Ending Cash Balance as Budgeted

FINANCIAL REPORT



12000000

10000000

8000000

6000000

4000000

2000000

Tuition and Grants

Lunch, School
Store, Dell

State
Reimbursements

Federal
Reimbursements
and Subsidies

Other Revenues




8000000

7000000

6000000

5000000

4000000

3000000

2000000

1000000

Salaries and
Benefits

Professional
Services

Building and
Equipment Rental

Other Purchased
Services

Books, Supplies,
and Refreshments

Depreciation and
Property
Expenses

Miscellaneous
Expenses




As of:
May 31, 2021

June 30, 2020

Balance Sheet

Cash Current Tuition Accounts
Balance Ratio* Receivable Payable
$5,060,931 $22 to $1 $883,297 $5,797
$4,351,702 $12 to $1 $803,521 $9,284

*Current Ratio = Current Assets/Current Liabilities

May 31, 2021

June 30, 2020

For the 11 Mos.

Ended May:
2021
20/21 Budget
% of Budget

2020

Comments:

Tuition Receivable Aging Schedule

Total Current >30 >60 >90
$883,297 $625,624 $0 ($52) $257,725
$803,521 $213,875 $449,389 $0 $140,257

Income Statement

Total Total Revenue Per  Expense Per
Revenue Expense Student* Student*
$10,763,130  $10,158,406 $21,104.18 $19,918.44
$12,351,726  $12,161,460 $22,873.57 $22,521.22
87.14% 83.53% 92.26% 88.44%
$10,952,372  $10,660,610 $20,471.72 $19,926.37

Revenue is lower in 20/21 than 19/20 due to lower

enrollment numbers (especially new Freshmen) and lower

food service revenue due to the virtual learning environment.
Other factors affecting the comparison of YTD revenue through
May 2021 are the PMC grant in 19/20 of $50,000 and the
PASmart Grant of ~$27,000, neither of which are received in
fiscal 20/21, as well as lower interest income.

Offestting this are receipt of the PCCD Covid-19 grant of ~$90K
in 20/21, receipt of the lease reimbursement of $38K from PDE,
and receipt of ESSER and SECIM funding in 20/21.

YTD Expenses in 20/21 are much lower than 19/20 due to

lower transportation, food service, supplies, utilities, PSERS costs,
and special education costs.

Offsetting this is rent escalation of ~$35K paid in August 2020,
higher advertising and student awards costs, and loss on disposal
of assets.

See below for benefit expense discussion.



Concerns:

*Average Student Enroliment assumed as follows:
20/21 Budget: 540 students

May 2021 510 students  (YTD Average)
May 2020 535 students  (YTD Average)

Total Revenue is lower YTD in fiscal 20/21 than 19/20 due

to the lower tuition revenue as a result of lower enroliment to
begin the 20/21 school year. Average enroliment

is down 25 students at this point in the 20/21 school year

as compared to the same time in the 19/20 school year.

(510 vs 535). This is primarily due to the new Freshman Class.
The fiscal 20/21 budget was built based on average enroliment
of 540 students. The effect of lower enrollment is partially offset
by higher annual tuition rates than budgeted, especially the PPS
Special Education Tuition rate ($3,000 higher than budgeted).
In addition, there continues to be a loss of interest earnings
due to decrease in interest rates (Covid-19 related).

Note that City High realized a total savings of ~$550,000 in
fiscal 17/18 thru 19/20, by implementing the new 401K plan
for new hires effective 7/1/17.

As of 5/31/21, 33 employees are participating in the 401K
plan rather than PSERS. This represents over 30% of the
workforce. Savings will continue to grow each fiscal year as
employee turnover occurs and new hires join the 401K plan
rather than PSERS.









City Charter High School
List of Depository Institutions
As of May 31, 2021

MMAX Account: (Placed Through Huntington Bank)

Issuer Name FDIC # City, State Amount
Amerant Bank National Association 22953 Coral Gables, FL $249,000.00
BankUnited National Association 58979 Miami Lakes, FL $249,000.00
City National Bank of Florida 20234 Miami, FL $249,000.00
Customers Bank 34444 Phoenixville, PA $249,000.00
Hanmi Bank 24170 Los Angeles, CA $249,000.00
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. 628 Columbus, OH $249,000.00
Malvern Bank, NA 27861 Paoli, PA $249,000.00
Midland States Bank 1040 Effingham, IL $27,539.19
Origin Bank 12614 Choudrant, LA $249,000.00
Republic Bank 27332 Philadelphia, PA $249,000.00
Signature Bank 57053 New York, NY $249,000.00
SpiritBank 4048 Tulsa, OK $249,000.00
The First National Bank of Long Island 7072 New York, NY $249,000.00
The First National Bank of South Miami 17093 South Miami, FL $249,000.00
Third Coast Bank SSB 58716 Humble, TX $249,000.00

Total Portfolio (Interest - .03%)

Certificates of Deposit: (Placed Through PNC Investments, Inc.)

$3,513,539.19

Issuer Name/Cusip No. Effective Date Maturity Date Interest Rate Amount
Fortunebank, Arnold, MO/34969RCY2 1/25/2021 3/29/2021 0.05% $250,000.00
Midfirst Bank/Oklahoma City, OK/59740JZM4 1/25/2021 5/3/2021 0.02% $250,000.00
Pathfinder Bank, Oswego, NY/70320KAW1 1/25/2021 5/12/2021 0.05% $250,000.00
Truxton Trust, Nashville, TN/89846HAGS8 1/25/2021 5/17/2021 0.02% $250,000.00

Total Portfolio

$1,000,000.00




NOTE: Each Certificate of Deposit issued under a specific Cusip Number is a separate and distinct entity
with respect to FDIC insurance coverage, regardless of issuing bank.



',(/)({,Lt(ﬂ g8 Sy If?)wwnu. (L €a 52 qpc[ut{/ ﬁo—w&

inal - -2022 i i ildi
Final - Adopted June xx, 2021 2021 Budget /0 /i 71" 5 70 Verizon Building
: Partner4 it Special | Title I, IL
Operating Budget | 01 Funds Erate Work Charter PDE Ed lV, ’| Other Total | Grand Total
Year 2021 - 2022 Grant
Number of Stud 540
Student Vacancies 84
Charter Mandated Funding 9023638| 9023638 0 9023638|
Additional Special Ed Funding @ 21% 2829670 0 2829670 2829670 2829670
Food Service Revenue L 90000 90000 90000
Food Reimbursement - 170000 0 170000 170000 170000,
Title I, 1A, 1V Funding o 300000 0 300000 300000 300000
Federal, State Grants, Erate . 40000 0| 12000 28000 28000 40000
ESSR I, ESSER 1, SECIM Grants 402500 0 402500 402500 402500
State Building Reimbursement 40000 40000 0 40000
State Special Ed 611B reimbursement ¥ 125000 0 125000 125000 125000
Nurse Reimbursement . 10000 0 10000 10000 10000
PA Charter School Grant 450000 0 450000 0 450000 450000
Refunds and Other Misc. Revenue 25000 25000 0 25000
Eamings on In 2 5000 5000 0 5000
Revenue from Student Activities 25000 25000 25000
Fundraising 0 0 Q
Grants and Donati . 64000) ] 64000 64000
Carry Over / Cash Reserve $4,800,000 | 4800000 o ) 0 4800000
Revenue i1 e . 18399808| 14008638 12000 64000 450000 ' 582500 20954670 328000 4351170 18399808
|Expenditures —
Payroll Admin
CEO 1 145000 123250 21750 21750 145000
Asst. Principals 4 422000 358400 63600 63600 422000
Payroll Teaching
Education Leaders and Tech M 12 1060500 965700 94800 94800 1060500
Expert Teachers 12 894000 695600 9000 26000 5000 92400 66000 198400 894000
Jouneyman Teachers 20 1222995 897810 140000 159000 26185 325185 1222995
Apprentice Teachers 18 943000 819000 124000 0 124000 943000
Payroll Staff Support
Manager, Business Affairs 1 64000 64000 0 64000
nrollment and Clerks Plus Cc ity Eng 4 219000 85000 134000 134000 219000
Promotion Adj (95000) Plus Stipends (35500) 0 130500 130500 0 130500
Activities Director 1 45300 45300 0 45300
Custodian 2] 91700 91700 0 91700
Lunchroom 4 138000 138000 0 138000
Paraprofessional 12 438000 184000 130000 124000 254000 438000
Security 3 121600 121600 0 121600
Benefits| 48.80% 2916081 2322803 10000 334548 97735 593279 2916081
Students 35000 35000 0 35000
Attendance or Performance Bonuses 94,0 170400 170400 — | . 0 170400
Eﬁb’r.'i'ow'ﬁ_'q' roll 9057076] 7133062 0 9000 310000 5000 1020098 3@ 1809014 9057076)
Other Operating Costs
—_WEHW(SKW'F%WWUK) Services 17 T70000 5600 350000 175000]
ESL Services 60000 60000 0 60000
Transporiation Services 200000 66000 134000 134000 200000
Special Ed Services 285000 65000 0 220000 220000 285000
Extended Day Programs 15000 10000 5000 5000 15000
Staff Education Rebates 24000 4000 20000 20000 24000
Student College/Career/Technical Tuition . 75000 20000 55000 55000 75000
Annual Technology Subscriptions 29500 29500 0 29500
Art and Music 10000 10000 0 10000
Student Activities and Field Trips 25000 20000 5000 5000 25000
Student Travel (DC, NY, CR) 80000 80000 0 80000
Instructional Materials 125000 109882 0 15118 0 15118 125000
Annual Technology Purchases + other tech 251000 241000 10000 10000 251000
Supplies 90000 60000 25000 5000 30000 90000
Tech Support 5000 5000 0 5000
Furniture/Fixtures/Leaschold Imp 100000 80000 20000 0 0 20000 100000
Phones, Internet 35000 23000 12600 12000 35000
Security Support L] 5000 5000 0 0 5000
Rent b 1450000 1405000 45000 45000 1450000
Utilities 175000 175000 175000
Custodial, Maintenance and Supphi 130000 120000 10000 10000 130000
Copier 3 85000 85000 [1) 85000
Insurance 70000 70000 0 70000,
Refreshments 15000 12500 2500 2500 15000
Travel, C Dues, Publicati 8000 5000 3000 3000 8000
Marketing, Printing, Public Relati 265000 145000 110000 10000 120000 265000
Board and Edsys Development 3000 3000 0 3000
Legal 60000 60000 0 60000
Payroll, Bookeeping, Audit (12K) 72000 72000 [4] 72000
Student Information System (Admin Plus) 14000 10000 4000 0 4000 14000
Strategic/Program Development and Evaluation 40000 30000 10000 0 0 10000 40000
Staff Development 25000 25000 0 0 0 25000
Non-Allocated ESSER II Grant Expenditures 190000] 190000 0 0 0 190000
|Subtotal Expenses o $4,191.500 $3,465,882  $12,000 $55.000 $140,000 $60,000 $433,618  $25,000  $725.618 $4,191,500
[ Total Expenses $13,248,576 $10,713.945  $12,000 564,000 $450,000 $65,000 $1,453,716 $338,920 2,534,632 $13,248,576
IBalance / Carryover $5,151,231 $3,294,693 50 S0 $0 $517,500 $1,500,954 -$10,920 $1,856,539 85,151,231
Net Gain (Loss) $351,231.44
Subsidy from Fund Balance $351,231




BENEFITS BUDGET ANAYLSIS
Fiscal 21/22

Payroll Budget for 20/21

Multiply by ER FICA Rate

ER FICA Expense

Multiply by Life Insurance Rate

Life Insurance Expense

Payroll Budget for 21/22

Less 401(K) Employees and Students

Payroll for PSERS Employees
Multiply by PSERS Rate for 21/22

ER PSERS Expense

Payroll for 401(k) Employees
Multiply by 401(K) Average Rate

ER 401(K) Expense

Medical/Dental/Vision Expense

Unemployment Compensation Expense

Total Benefit Expense
Total Payroll Expense

Benefits as % of Payroll

6,140,995 Includes Promotions, Stipends, Bonuses, and Subs
0.0765

469,786 1
0.01
61,410 2

5,900,595 Excludes $170.4K in Bonuses and $70K in Substitute Sal:
(1,926,000) Includes $35K for Students

3,974,595
0.3494
1,388,723 3
1,891,000 Excludes Students
0.10
189,100 4

787,500 5 5% Increase from 20/21 ($750K)

20,000 6 Estimate based on Previous Years
2,916,520 1+2+3+4+5+6
6,035,995 Excludes Substitutes and Students
48.80%



PRELIMINARY Budget Notes for 21/22 Fiscal Year

Revenues:

1.

8.

8.

The 21/22 budget is built based upon an average enrollment during the year of 540 students.
This is based on the actual enroliment of rising sophomores, juniors, and seniors in late 20/21,
as well as actual completed applications and enroliment data for the new freshman class.

Tuition Revenue assumes 78% of students are from Pittsburgh Public Schools @ annual tuition

rate of $17,898 (based on fiscal 20/21 actual).

Assumes 22% of students are from suburban school districts @ average annual tuition rate of $12,500
(based on 20/21 weighted average rates for suburban school districts).

Special Education Tuition is based on 21% special education students at $24,953 incremertt over
regular tuition rates (based on fiscal 20/21 actual).

Title | and Il and IV Revenue is assumed as final 20/21 funding as published by PDE of $300,000.

ESSER |, ESSER II, and SECIM Grants

ESSER | and SECIM grants are budgeted at $100K and $2.5K, respectively, which are the
estimated remaining payments on the grants after 6/30/21.

ESSER Il is budgeted at $300K, which is the amount City High expects to receive and expend during
fiscal 21/22. The $966K grant can be received and expended through fiscal 22/23.

PA Charter School Grant

The total grant awarded to City High is $1,298,470, to be paid over a three-year period. For fiscal 21/22,
City High expects to receive and expend ~$450,000, including salaries and benefits of certain personnel,
marketing, technology, and fixed assets.

Grants and Donations budgeted are $64,000 as follows: Approved $64,000 Partner4Work Grant

Where not otherwise noted, 21/22 revenue is based on 20/21 and 19/20 actual experience.

Cash Reserve is based on estimated cash balance @ 6/30/21.

Expenditures:

1.

Salaries are based on actual personnel and associated salary rates, taking into account expected
terminations, promotions, and new hires for fiscal 21/22. Across the board salary increases have
been factored into the fiscal 21/22 budget.

NOTE: Salaries are budgeted at $6,141K. This includes raises related to staff promotions,
which are averaged to occur mid-year, 2 substitute teachers, bonuses, stipends, and students.
The last across the board salary increase for City High employees occurred in the fiscal 19/20
operating budget.

The Salary budget anticipates the addition of 3 newly created positions in fiscal 21/22 as follows:
Educational Technology Coordinator, Community Engagement Liaison, and additional Social Worker/
Counselor - All funded by the PA Charter School Grant (discussed in Note 6 under Revenues).

In addition, the budget includes 3 open positions to be funded from general funds as follows:
Teaching Associate, Security Officer, and Custodian.

Benefits are anticipated at 48.8% of salary for 21/22 due to additional new hires being added

to the 401(K) plan (maximum 12% of salary) vs PSERS. This savings is partially offset by increase
in PSERS rate (from 34.51% to 34.94%) and a 5% increase medical premiums, (based on final
insurance quote). All other benefit costs will remain comparable to 20/21, with slight increases

due to overall increased salary projection.



3. Special Education Services budget was developed by the Special Education Manager and Ed
Leader, and includes projected costs for private school tuition, IEP evaluations and reevaluations,
social skills training, vision and occupational therapy and support, software licenses, and other
miscellaneous specialized training in 21/22. All services are expected to remain comparable to 20/21.

4. Transportation Services has been budgeted at $200,000 based on 20/21 actual expenses (while
operational) and detailed special education transportation needs as projected for 21/22.
Transportation Services are utilized primarily for special education student transportation to and
from approved private schools. This budget line also includes student transportation for college visits,
other field trips, as well as bus tickets purchased for student use. The overwhelming majority of
cost is related to special education transportation (over 95%).

5. Student College/Career/Technical Tuition includes $55,000 to reflect the costs
associated with the ongoing Partner 4 Work Grant (discussed in Note 7 under Revenues).

6. Student Activities and Field Trips - This amount has been reduced to $25K in the fiscal 21/22
as the normal Fall field trips will not take place (Teen Quest, Ohio Pyle, Camp Kon-O-Kwee,
Laurel Caverns). However, there may be other field trips and activities planned in fiscal 21/22.

It does not include the cost of transportation to any field trips (See #3 above).

7. Student Travel (NF, NYC, and Costa Rica) remains consistent at $80,000 in 21/22 based on
actual costs that have historically been underwritten by City High. Note that these trips were
cancelled in 19/20 and 20/21 due to COVID-19. Since final actual costs are not available,
no changes to the 21/22 budget have been made.

8. Instructional Materials budget has remained the same for 21/22 budget, based on actual
experience in 20/21 and 19/20.

9. Annual Technology Purchases and Other Tech Purchases has increased by ~$113K from
the 20/21 budget. This is due primarily to more expensive laptop purchases for fiscal 21/22
to support virtual and hybrid instruction, as well as technology purchases and upgrades
to be made with the PA Charter School funding.

10. Other Supplies budget is consistent with 20/21 budget and actual experience.

11. Utilities budget has been reduced yet again for fiscal 21/22 after several years of reduced
budgets based on continued actual cost savings due to initiated cost reduction strategies.

12. Custodial Supplies and Maintenance budget remains flat for 21/22 based on actual
experience in fiscal 20/21, and discussion with Maintenance manager regarding anticipated
projects and needs during 21/22.

13. Furniture/Fixtures/Leasehold Improvements budget includes $100,000 for various fixed asset
needs other than computers and technical equipment, $22,000 of which is for new cafeteria
tables with built-in seats which were budgeted but not purchased in 18/20 and 20/21(current tables
and chairs are over 15 years old). Also includes $21K for new restroom stall partitions, $20K for
science lab purchases under the PA Charter School grant, and the remainder for purchases to
accommodate offices and space for the new administrative staffing positions planned for fiscal 21/22.

14. Rent budget is based on the actual lease terms in effect for fiscal 21/22, with $40,000 added for
City High share of real estate tax increase over base year (19/20 was ~$34,500; nothing has been
invoiced or paid yet for 20/21).

15. Marketing has been increased by $110,000 over 20/21 budget to reflect $100,000 for professionally



filmed and produced marketing videos to be used in marketing and recruitment, and $10,000 for
recruitment event supplies - both funded by the PA Charter School Grant.

16. Where not otherwise noted, 21/22 budget expenditures are based on 20/21 and 19/20 actual experience and
experience and previously contracted amounts (Insurance, Copier and Office Equipment Leases, efc...)



